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Defendant emitted, and continues to emit, visible emissions from Will County Unit 2 that exceed
the opacity limits in Section 212.123.

248.  U.S. EPA has found, based upon visible emissions referenced in the preceding
paragraph, that the Defendant has been, and, upon information and belief, continues to be, in
violation of 35 IAC § 212.123 at Will County Unit 2. Pursuant to Section 113(a) of the Act,

42 U.S.C. § 7413(a)(1), U.S. EPA notified the Defendant and Illinois by the NOV that U.S. EPA
had found the Defendant to be in violation of Section 212.123.

249. Defendant has violated, and continues to violate, the 30 percent opacity limitation
under 35 IAC § 212.123 at Will County Unit 2. This provision is a federally enforceable Illinois
SIP provision, pursuant to Section 113(a) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(a), and is also enforceable
as a violation of Section 9(a) of the Illinois Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(a). Unless restrained by an order
of this Court, these and similar violations of the Act will continue.

250. As provided in Section 113(b) of the Act, 42 U;S.C. § 7413(b), the violations set
forth above subject Defendant to injunctive relief and civil penalties of up to $27,500 per day for
each such violation occurring on or after January 31, 1997; $32,500 per day for each such
violation occurring on or after March 15, 2004; and $37,500 per day for each such violation
occurring on or after January 12, 2009, pursuant to the Federal Civil Penalties Inflation
Adjustment Act of 1990, 28 U.S.C. § 2461, as amended by 31 U.S.C. § 3701.

THIRTY-THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Title V Violations at Will County Unit 2)

251. Paragraphs 1-63 and 247-250 are realleged and incorporated herein by reference.
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252.  As set forth above, Defendant has violated, and, upon information and belief,
continues to be in violation of, opacity limitations under the Illinois SIP, 35 IAC § 212.123, at
Will County Unit 2.

253. Defendant has failed to submit a complete application for a Title V operating
permit for Will Cbunty Unit 2 that identifies all applicable requirements, accurately certifies
compliance with such requirements, contains a compliance plan for all applicable requirements
for which the source was not in compliance (including the requirement to meet opacity
limitations under the Illinois SIP), and other specific information that may be necessary to
implement and enforce the applicable requirements of the Act, Title V, the Illinois CAAPP, or to
determine the applicability of such requirements, as required by Section 503(c) of the Act,

42 U.S.C. § 7661b(c), 40 C.F.R. § 70.5, and the Illinois CAAPP, 415 ILCS 5/39.5(5).

254. Defendant’s conduct has violated and continues to violate Sections 502(a) and
503(c) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7661a(a) and 7661b(c), 40 C.F.R. §§ 70.5-70.6, and the Illinois |
CAAPP, 415 ILCS 5/39.5, at Will County Unit 2. Unless restrained by an order of this Court,
these and similar violations will continue.

255.  As provided in Section 113(b) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(b), the violations set
forth above subject Defendant to injunctive relief and civil penalties of up to $27,500 per day for
each such violation occurring on or after January 31, 1997; $32,500 per day for each such
violation occurring on or after March 15, 2004; and $37,500 per day for each such violation
occurring on or after January 12, 2009, pursuant to the Federal Civil Penalties Inflation

Adjustment Act of 1990, 28 U.S.C. § 2461, as amended by 31 U.S.C. § 3701.
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THIRTY-FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Illinois SIP Opacity Violations at Will County Unit 3)

256.  Paragraphs 1-63 are realleged and incorporated herein by reference.

257.  As a qualifying source under 35 IAC § 212.123, Will County Unit 3 is subject to
the 30 percent opacity limit contained in 35 IAC § 212.123. From approximately October 31,
2002 and, upon information and belief, continuing until the present, on numerous occasions,
Defendant emitted, and continues to emit, visible emissions from Will County Unit 3 that exceed
the opacity limits in Section 212.123 of the Illinois SIP.

258. U.S. EPA has found, based upon visible emissions referenced in the preceding
paragraph, that the Defendant has been, and, upon informétion and belief, continues to be, in
violation of 35 IAC § 212.123 at Will County Unit 3. Pursuant to Section 113(a) of the Act,

42 U.S.C. § 7413(a)(1), U.S. EPA notified the Defendant and Illinois by the NOV that U.S. EPA
had found the Defendant to be in violation of 35 IAC § 212.123.

259. Defendant has violated, and continues to violate, the 30 percent opacity limitation
under 35 IAC § 212.123 at Will County Unit 3. This provision is a federally enforceable Illinois
SIP provision, pursuant to Section 113(a) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(a), and is also enforceable
as a violation of Section 9(a) of the Illinois Act, 415 ILCS 5/9(a). Unless restrained by an order
of this Court, these and similar violations of the Act will continue.

260. Asprovided in Section 113(b) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(b), the violations set
forth above subject Defendant to injunctive relief and civil penalties of up to $27,500 per day for
each such violation occurring on or after January 31, 1997; $32,500 per day for each such

violation occurring on or after March 15, 2004; and $37,500 per day for each such violation
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occurring on or after January 12, 2009, pursuant to the Federal Civil Penalties Inﬂation
Adjustment Act of 1990, 28 U.S.C. § 2461, as amended by 31 U.S.C. § 3701.
THIRTY-FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Title V Violations at Will County Unit 3)

261. Paragraphs 1-63 and 256-260 are realleged and incorporated herein by reference.

262. As set forth above, Defendant has violated, and, upon information and belief,
continues to be in violation of, opacity limitations under the Illinois SIP, 35 IAC § 212.123, at
Will County Unit 3.

263. Defendant has failed to submit a complete application for a Title V operating
permit for Will County Unit 3 that identifies all applicable requirements, accurately certifies
compliance with such requirements, contains a compliance plan for all applicable requirements
for which the source was not in compliance (including the requirement to meet opacity
limitations under the Illinois SIP), and other specific information that may be necessary to
implement and enforce the applicable requirements of the Act, Title V, the Illinois CAAPP, or to
determine the applicability of such requirements, as requiréd by Section 503(c) of the Act,

42 U.S.C. § 7661b(c), 40 C.F.R. § 70.5, and the Illinois CAAPP, 415 ILCS 5/39.5(5).

264. Defendant’s conduct has violated and continues to violate Sections 502(a) and
503(c) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7661a(a) and 7661b(c), 40 C.F.R. §§ 70.5-70.6, and the Illinois
CAAPP, 415 ILCS 5/39.5, at Will County Unit 3. Unless restrained by an order of this Court,
these and similar violations will continue.

.265. As provided in Section 113(b) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(b), the violations set

forth above subject Defendant to injunctive relief and civil penalties of up to $27,500 per day for
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each such violation occurring on or after January 31, 1997; $32,500 per day for each such
violation occurring on or after Mar(;h 15, 2004; and $37,500 per day for each such violation
occurring on or after January 12, 2009, pursuant to the Federal Civil Penalties Inflation
Adjustment Act of 1990, 28 U.S.C. § 2461, as amended by 31 U.S.C. § 3701.
THIRTY-SIXTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(PSD Violations at Will County Unit 4)

266. Paragraphs 1-63 afe realleged and incorporated herein by reference.

267. In or about February 2000, Defendant commenced construction of one or more
~ major modifications, as defined in the Act and the Illinois SIP, at Will County Unit 4 without
applying for or receiving a PSD permit. These modifications included one or more physical
changes or changes in the method of operation at Will County Unit 4, including, but not
necessari.ly limited to, replacing boiler components. These modification were described in the
NOV issued to Defendant on July 31, 2007. These modifications resulted in significant net
emissions increases, as defined by the relevant PSD regulations, of one or more of the following:
NO,, SO,, and/or PM.

268. Defendant has not complied with the PSD requirements in the Illinois SIP with
respect to the major modifications at Will County Unit 4. Among other things, Defendant has
failed to apply for and obtain a PSD permit as required by the Illinois SIP prior to commencing
construction and operation of the major modifications at Will County Unit 4. Defendant did not
undergo a BACT determination in connection with these major modifications. Defendant failed
to install BACT for control of NO,, SO,, and/or PM, pursuant to such determination, at Will

County Unit 4.
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269. Defendant has violated and continues to violate Section 165(a) of the Act,
42 U.S.C. § 7475(a), and the PSD provisions of the Illinois SIP, and Section 9.1(d) of the Illinois
Act, 415 ILCS 5/9.1(d), at Will County Unit 4. Unless restrained by an order of this Court, these
and similar violations of the Act will continue.

270.  As provided in Section 113(b) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(b), the violations set
~ forth above subject Defendant to injunctive relief and civil penalties of up to $27,500 per day for
each such violation occurring on or after January 31, 1997; $32,500 per day for each such
violation occurring on or after March 15, 2004; and $37,500 per day for each such violation
occurring on or after January 12, 2009, pursuant to the Federal Civil Penalties Inflation
Adjustment Act of 1990, 28 U.S.C. § 2461, as amended by 31 U.S.C. § 3701.

THIRTY-SEVENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(Illinois SIP Opacity and PM Violations at Will County Unit 4)

271.  Paragraphs 1-63 and 267-270 are realleged and incorporated herein by reference.

272.  As a qualifying modified source under 35 IAC § 212.122, Will County Unit 4 is
subject to the 20 percent opacity limit contained in 35 IAC § 212._1 22. From approximately
| October 31, 2002 and, upon information and belief, continuing until the present, on numerous
occasions, Defendant emitted, and continues to emit, visible emissions from Will County Unit 4
that exceed the opacity limits in Section 212.122 of the Illinois SIP.

273. In addition, Will County Unit 4 is a qualifying source under Illinois SIP provision
35 IAC § 212.204 governing PM limitations for such sources. As provided in 35 IAC

§ 212.124(d)(2)(A), an exceedance of the opacity limitations of 35 IAC § 212.122 at Will County
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Unit 4 shall constitute a violation of the applicable PM limitations contained in 35 IAC
§ 212.204 at Will County Unit 4.

274. In the alternative, as a qualifying source under 35 IAC § 212.123, Will County
Unit 4 is subject to the 30 percent opacity limit contained in 35 IAC § 212.123. From
approximately October 31, 2002 and, upon information and belief, continuing until the present,
on numerous occasions, Defendant emitted, and continues to emit, visible emissions from Will
County Unit 4 that exceed the opacity limits in Section 212.123 of the Illinois SIP.

275. U.S. EPA has found, based upon visible emissions referenced in paragraphs 272
and 274, that the Defendant has been, and, upon information and belief, continues to be, in
violation of 35 IAC § 212.122 and 35 IAC § 212.204 or, in the alternative, Section 212.123, at
Will County Unit 4. Pursuant to Section 113(a) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(a)(1), U.S. EPA
notified the Defendant and Illinois by the NOV that U.S. EPA had found the Defendant to be in
violation of 35 IAC § 212.122 and 35 IAC § 212.204 or, in the alternative, Section 212.123.

276. Defendant has violated, and continues to violate, the 20 percent opacity limitation
under 35TAC § 212.122 and the PM limitations under 35 IAC § 212.204 or, in the alternative,
the 30 percent opacity limitation under 35 JAC §'212. 123, at Will County Unit 4. Each of these
provisions is a federally enforceable Illinois SIP provision, pursuant to Section 113(a) of the Act,
42 U.S.C. § 7413(a), and is also enforceable as a violation of Section 9(a) of the Illinois Act,
415.ILCS 5/9(a). Unless restrained by an order of this Court, these and similar violations of the
Act will continue.

277. As provided in Section 1 13(b) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(b), the violations set

forth above subject Defendant to injunctive relief and civil penalties of up to $27,500 per day for
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each such violation occurring on or after January 31, 1997; $32,500 per day for each such
violation occurring on or after March 15, 2004; and $37,500 per day for each such violation
occurring on or after January 12, 2009, pursuant to the Federal Civil Penalties Inflation
Adjustment Act of 1990, 28 U.S.C. § 2461, as amended by 31 U.S.C. § 3701.

THIRTY-EIGHTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF

(Title V Violations at Will County Unit 4)

278. Paragraphs 1-63 and 267-277 are realleged anci incorporated herein by reference.

279. As set forth above, on December 15, 1999, Defendant commenced operation of
Will County Unit 4 with one or more major modifications, as defined under the PSD regulations
and incorporated into the Illinois SIP. As a result, these modifications triggered the
requirements to, among other things, obtain a PSD permit establishing emissions limitations that
meet BACT and operate in compliance with BACT. Defendant failed to satisfy these
requirements. Additionally, as described above, Defendant has violated, and, upon information
and belief, continues to be in violation of, opacity and PM limitations under the Illinois SIP,
351IAC § 212.122 and 35 IAC § 212.204 or, in the alternative, Section 212.123, at Will County
Unit 4.

280. Defendant has failed to submit a complete application for a Title V operating
permit for Will County Unit 4 that identifies all apblicable requirements, accurately certifies
compliance with such requirements, contains a compliance plan for all applicable requirements
for which the source was not in compliance (including the requirement to meet BACT pursuant
to a BACT determination under PSD and to meet opacity and PM limitations under the Illinois

SIP), and other specific information that may be necessary to implemenf and enforce the
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applicable requirements of the Act, Title V, the Illinois CAAPP, or to determine the applicability
of such requirements, as required by Section 503(c) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7661b(c), 40 C.F.R.
§ 70.5, and the Illinois CAAPP, 415 ILCS 5/39.5(5).

281. Defendant’s conduct has violated and continues to violate Sections 502(a) and
SQ3(c) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7661a(a) and 7661b(c), 40 C.F.R. §§ 70.5-70.6, and the Illinois
CAAPP, 415 ILCS 5/39.5, at Will County Unit 4. Unless restrained by an order of this Court,
these and similar violations will continue.

282. As provided in Section 113(b) of the Act, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(b), the violations set
forth above subject Defendant to injunctive relief and civil penalties of up to $27,500 per day for
each such violation occurring on or after January 31, 1997; $32,500 per day for each such
violation occurring on or after March 15, 2004; and $37,500 per day for each such violation
occurring on or after January 12, 2009, pursuant to the Federal Civil Penalties Inflation
Adjustment Act of 1990, 28 U.S.C. § 2461, as amended by 31 U.S.C. § 3701.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, based upon all the allegations set forth above, the United States and the
State of Illinois request that this Court:

1. Permanently enjoin Defendant from operating any of the plants subject ‘to this
action, including the construction of future modifications, except in accordance with the Clean
Air Act and any applicable regulatory requirements;

2 Order Defendant to apply for new source review permits under Parts C and/or D

of Title I of the Clean Air Act, as appropriate, that conform with the permitting requirements in
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effect at the time of the permitting action, for each pollutant in violation of the new source
review requirements of the Clean Air Act.

3. Order Defendant to remedy its past violations by, among other things, requiring
Defendant to install and operate the best available control technology or lowest achievable
emission rate, as appropriate, at the units subject to this action, for each pollutant in violation of
the new source review requirements of the Clean Air Act;

4. Order Defendant to apply and/or amend applications for permits that are in
conformity with the requirements of the Illinois SIP opacity and PM limitations and the Title V
program;

5. Order Defendant to achieve, maintain, and demonstrate compliance with the CAA
and applicable requirements established thereunder, including provisions of the Illinois SIP
described above;

6. Order Defendant to conduct audits of its operations to determine if any additional
modifications have occurred that would require it to meet the requirements of PSD or
Nonattainment NSR, as appropriate, and report the results of these audits to the United States and

| the State of Illinois;

7. Order Defendant to take other appropriate actions to remedy, mitigate, and offset
the harm to public health and the environment caused by the violations of the Clean Air Act
alleged above;

8. Assess a civil penalty against Defendant of up to $25,000 per day for each
violation of the Clean Air Act and applicable regulations occurring before January 31, 1997,

$27,500 per day for each such violation occurring on or after January 31, 1997; $32,500 per day
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for each such violation occurring on or after March 15, 2004; and $37,500 per day for each such
violation occurring on or after January 12, 2009;
9. Award Plaintiffs their costs of this action; and,

10.  Grant such other relief as the Court deems just and proper.

Dated: August 92& , 2009

ET’E)MFER AALUKAS- JACKSON [/

rial Attorney

OF COUNSEL Environmental Enforcement Section

SUSAN TENNENBAUM Environment and Natural Resources Division
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